G S A & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF MII ECOLIFE EMOBILITY PRIVATE LIMITED

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of MH ECOLIFE EMOBILITY PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and the notes to financial statements including a summary of the

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as * financial
statcments™).

In our cpinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (the ‘Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India including Indian Accounting standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) , of the state of affairs of
the Company (financial position) as at March 31, 2023, and its profit (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with standards on auditing specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilitics under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibility for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The Company’s management and the Board of Dircctors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in Annual Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon, The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after
the date of this auditor’s report

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thercon.
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In conncction with our audit report of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and if required issue a revised Audit report on
financial statements.

RESPONSIBILITY OFIF MANAGEMENT FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Dircctors is responsible for the matters stated in sub-section 5 of Section 134 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
changes in cquity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in Indin, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read
with relevant rules issued thercunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safcguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonablc and prudent: and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operation,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercisc professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The nisk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;




« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for explaining
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls;

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policics used and the rcasonablencss of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management;

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continuc as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit cvidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continuc as a going concern; and

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the cconomic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in cvaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide thosc charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 included in these
financial statements are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2022 which werc audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion vide

their report dated April 29, 2022,
Our opinion is not qualified in respcct of these matters.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1.As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the Central
Government of India in exercise of powers conferred by sub-section 11 of section 143 of the Act, we
enclose in the “Annexure A™ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.As required by sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtaincd all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.




b)

©)

d)

c)

g

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of thosc books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account,

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Acc_ounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, as applicable, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.
On the basis of the written representations reccived from the Directors as on March 31, 2023, taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31" March, 2023
from being appointed as a Directors in terms of section 164(2) of the Act

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating cffectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure
B”. Our report cxpresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal financial control over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position.

if) The Company did not have any long- term contracts including derivative contracts, other than
those which have already been provided, for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) (a) The management has represented in Note 36B (6) that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or
loaned or invested (cither from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented in Note 36B (7) that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which arc material cither individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Partics™), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indircctly, lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused them to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(¢), as provided under (a) and (b) above
contain any material misstatement.”

v) Since, the Company has neither paid or declared any dividend during the year nor proposed any
dividend for the year, hence, reporting requirement of clause (f) of rule 11 of the Companies

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 are not applicable on the Company.




vi) As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the company
only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

h) Since the Company has not paid any managerial remunecration during the year, hence, reporting
required under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable.

For GSA & Associates LLI
Chartered Accountants

M. No.: - 529619

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 09, 2023
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ChartFred Accountants
(Referred to in paragraph 1 of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our rep
of even date)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give In the Annexure as follows: -

i) In respect of Company's Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

a)  (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.
(B) The Company does not have any intangible asscts. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(i)(a)(13) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b)  Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any immovable
property. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, plant
and equipment or Intangible assets or both during the year.

¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

if) With respect to clause ii), we state that: -

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company docs
not have any inventory. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable

to the Company.

iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee
or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured and unsecured, to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records, the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans in respect of which provisions of sections
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable.

v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public within the meaning of the
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vi)

vii)

viii)

b)

<)

d)

€)

directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act, any
other relevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed thercunder. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records, the maintenance of the cost records has not been specificd by the Central Government
under scction 148(1) of the Companics Act, 2013 for the business activitics carried out by the
Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the books and records
as produced and examined by us, in our opinion:

a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and Scrvices Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax and other
material statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authoritics.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-
tax and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and cxplanations given to us, there were no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income

Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

With respect to the loans and borrowing obtained by the Company, we report that: -

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

- According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any

bank or other lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, thc Company has not availed any term loans during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any Subsidiaries, Associates or
Joint Ventures. Hence, reporting under Clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.




f)

x)
n)

b)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

xv)

xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of‘thc records of the Company, the Company does not have any Subsidiarics, Associates or
Joint Ventures. Hence, reporting under Clause 3(ix) (f) of the Order is not applicable.

With respect to Clause 3(x), we state that: -

. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

In respect of reporting under clause 3(xi), we state that: -

a) Based on examination of the books and rccords of the Company and according to the
information and cxplanations given o us, considering the principles of materiality as outlined
in the Standards on Auditing, we report that no material fraud by the Company or on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule
13 of Companics (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

¢) According to the information and cxplanations given to us, no whistle blower complaints has
been received by the Company during the year.

According to the information and e¢xplanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in
compliance with Section 188, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and
the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as
required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of Section 177 are not applicable
on the Company.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period of
audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and cxplanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Scction 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

With respect to reporting under clause 3(xvi), we state that: -

a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934, Accordingly, clausc 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.




b) The Company is not rec!uircd to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

€) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the

Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not
applicable.

xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding

financial year.

xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we have taken into

consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets

Xx)

and payment of financial liabilitics, other information accompanying the financial statements and
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
meeting the threshold specified in section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For GSA & Associates LLP

M. No.: - 529619

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 09, 2023



G S A & Associat
ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ates LLP

: h
(Referred to in clause (f) of paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requtl:re?nrftzg{s'3 dse}ét(i?g:? AnkHms
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MH ECOLIFE EMOBILITY
PRIVATE LIMITED as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“The ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating cffectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information. as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing,
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemnal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. OQur audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness cxists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's intemnal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of [inancial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions arc recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
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accordance with authorizations of management and directors of \the company, and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the intemnal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For GSA & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

M. No.: - 529619

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 09, 2023
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MH Ecolife Emobility Private Limited |

CIN: U63030D12020PTC360711

Balance Shest as at 31st March, 2023 (2 in Lakhs)
Note No. As at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
I. ABSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment a 16,511.10 11,687.37
(b) Capital work In progress 5 - 4,843.52
(¢) Finnncinl assels
(i) Other non current financlal asscts 6 2,360.65 1,165.10
18,871.75 17,695.99
Current nssets
() Financial assets
{i) Trade receivables B60.59 2,187.03
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 8 884,70 265.21
(iii) Other bank balances 9 271.06 120.03
[iv) Other current financial assets 10 78.12 22.49
{b) Other current assels 11 27737 3,685.08
2,371.84 6,279.86
Tatal Assets 21,243.59 23,975.85
1I1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12 5.00 5.00
(b) Other equity 13 1,928.72 2,078.81
1,933.72 2,083.81
Liabilities
Non-current labilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Barrowings 14 13,011.89 14,517.47
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 15 661,42 113.46
(c) Other non current liabilities 16 0.70 -
13,674.02 14,630.93
Current labilities
(a} Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 1973.87 1,767.55
(ii) Trade payables 18
Total OQutstanding Dues of Micro Enferprises and
Small 55.83 -
Enterprises
-{fit;.{{ii:?::;?%g?:;:{::mm“ A 1,400.63 1,811.08
{iif) Other current financial liabilitics 19 2,180.69 3.674.80
(b) Other current liabilities 20 24,82 7.68
5,635.85 7,261.11
Total Equity and Lisbilities 21,243.59 23,975.85
Significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying Notes are forming part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached 2
For GSA & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants MH Ecolife Emobility Private Limited
Firm Registration No. -
-

Tanuj Chugh Krishan Kiymar Gupta Sharad Gupta

Partner Director Director

Membership No. 529619 DIN : 08663129 DIN ; 08670417
Place ;: New Delhi Place : New Delhi

Place : New Delhi
Date : 9th May 2023

c
nuyj )nﬁ
Chief Financial Officer Comparty Secrktary

Place : New Delni .Place : New Delhi
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MH Ecolife Emobility Private Limited

CIN: Us3030DL2020PTC350711

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31t March, 2023

R

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income (I+11)

Expented

Employee beneflt expense

Finance cosia

Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses

Total Expenses

Profit/(Loss) before tax (I11-IV)

Tax Expense

Deferred tax

Profit/(Loss] after tax (V-VI)

Total Comprehensive Income

Earnings per equity share: (Face Value of t 10/-each)
{1) Basic

(2) Diluted

Significant accounting policies

1
22

23
24

25

26

27

The accompanying Notes are forming part of these financial statements

As per our report of even dale attached

For GSA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. - 000237

N500339

Place : New Delhi
Date : 9th May 2023

{ ¥ in Lakhs)
For the year ended 31st For the year ended
March, 2023 31st March, 2022
6,160.91 2,356.13
85.19 24,12
6,146.10 2,380.2%
1,567.78 231.84
1,357.16 46547
1,352.82 529.39
1,570.46 779.41
8,848.22 2,006.11
397.88 374.14
91.28 112.82
91.28 112.52
306.60 261.62
306.60 261.62
613.08 523.13
613.08 523.13
For and on behalf of Board of Directors
MH Ecolife Emobility Private Limited
-
Kris! urhar Gupta Shy Gupta
Director Director
DIN : 08663129 DIN : 08670417
Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi

h uj g
Chief Financial Officer Company Sec
Place : New Delhi Flace : New Delhi




JBMED

Ohur milesinnes ans inurivinnes

MH Ecolife Emobility Private Limited :

CIN: U63030DL2020PTC3 60711

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31at March, 2023 { 2 in Lakhs)
For tho year ended 31st For the Year ended 31st
Particulars March, 2023 March, 2022
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ;
Net Profit/(Loss) before tnx 397.88 374.14
Adjustment for :
Depreciation and nmortisation expense 1,352,82 529.39
Finance costs 1,357.16 465.47
Interest income {85.19) (24.12)
Deferred income on government grants " (0.20)
Operating profit before working capital changes 3,022.47 1,344.88
Movements in working caplital
(incrense) / Decrease in trade & other receivables 2,393.02 (2,204.28)
Increase | [Decrease] in trade & other payablea (337.57) 1,802.56
Cash Generated From Operations 2,055.45 (401.72)
Less : Direct taxes paid [net of refunds) 35.14 (3.96)
Net eash flow from/{used in) opernting activitics (A) 5,113.05 939.20
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES : -
I’ur\‘:‘hase}paynfcm of property, plant and (3,753.04) (19,690.64) °
equipment/capital work in progreas
Interest received 29,56 5.22
Proceeds from capital subsidy 3,120.00 2,580.00
Investment in fixed deposits (1,346.58) (1,210.13)
Net cash flow from Investing activities (B} (1,950.06) (18,315.55)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of preference share capital - 3,947.00
Proceeds from non current borrowings 748.00 14,041.27
Repayments of non current borrowings (2,226.75) -
Finance cost paid (1,064.75) (354.17)
Net cash flow from financing activities (C} (2,543.50) 17,634.10
Net increase in eash and cash equivalents (A+B+C] 619,49 257.75
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer Note No. 8) SEL 73
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note No.8) B A0 BEEa

Notes:

1 The above Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard ( IND -AS) -

2

7 on " Statement of Cash Flows"

The amendments to the Ind-AS 7 Statement of cash flow requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non cash
changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from
financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement. The required disclosure is made below. :

Particulars

As at 1st April

Cash Inflows/
(Outflows)

Non Cash Flow Changes

As at
31st March, 2023

Interest Component Of 6%
Non Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares

Borrowings- Nen Current* 16,285.02 (1,478.75) 179.50 14,985.77
16,285.02 [1,478.75) 179.50 14,985.77
* Including current maturities of non current borrowings &

3 Figures in bracket represents cash outflow

The accompanying notes are forming part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For GSA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. - 0 / N500339

Place : New Delhi
Date : 9th May 2023

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
MH Ecolife Emobility Private Limited

KrishatrKimar Gupta
Director

DIN : 08663129

Place : New Delhi

Avin inghal
Chief Financial Officer
Place : New Delhi

)

Sharad Gupta
Director

DIN : 08670417
Place : New Dell}

oA
j G :f"l/

Company Secretary
Place : New Delhi
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MH Ecolife Emobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2020PTC360711
Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended 31st Mnrch 2023

A. Equity share capital

(1) Current reporting perlod

[ T in Lakhs)

Dalance as at C-flnnge- in Equity Reatated balance nt Changes In Dalance as at
O1st April, | Bhare Capital due to Olst April, 2022 Equity Share 31st March,
Particulars 2022 prior perlod crrors .| Capltal during 2023
# the year
Equity share capitnl 5.00 = 5.00 - 5.00
(i1) Previous reporting period (1 in Lakhs)
Dalance as at | Changes In Equity | Restated balance at Changes in Balance as at
Olst April, | Bhare Capital due to Olst April, 2021 Equlty Bhare 31st March,
Particulars 2021 prior period errors Capital during 2022
the year
Equity share capital 5.00 - - = 5.00
B. Other cquity -
(i) Current reporting perliod (1 in Lakhs)
Reserves and
Surplus
Equity component of
Particulars compound financial g::;i:ed Total
instruments B
Balance as at Olst April, 2022 1,814.56 264.25 2,078.81
Changes in accounting policy or prior errors - - i
Balance as at Olst April, 2022 1,814.56 264.25 2,078.81
Add: Profit for the year 306.60 306.60
Less: Deferred Tax Liabilities on Equity component of financial instruments (456.69) - (456.69)
Balance as at 31st March 2023 1,357.87 570.85 1,928.72
(i) Previous reporting period
Reserves and
Surplus
Equity component of
Particulars compound finaneclal Retatnad Total
Earnings
instruments
Balance as at Dlst April, 2021 - - 2.63 2.63
Changes in accounting policy or prior errors = - -
Balance as at Olst April, 2021 - 2.63 2.63
Add: Profit for the year - 261.62 261.62
Add: Issued during the year* 1,814.56 - 1,814.56
Balance as at 31st March 2022 1,814.56 264.25 2,078.81

*Equity component of compound financial instruments includes Equity Component of 6% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share Capital,
issued during the year 3,94,70,000 {P.Y:31.03.2021: Nil ) of Rs. 10/~ cach .

The accompanying Notes are forming part of these financinl statements

As per our report of even date attached

For GSA & Associales
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. - 00

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
MH Ecolife Emobility Private Limited

Krishan Kufiar Gupta

Sharad Gupta

Director Director
Membership No. 529619 . DIN : 08663129 ) DIN : 08670417
Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi

Place : New Delhi
Date : 0th May 2023

Place : New Delhi

o

Company Secretary
Flace : New Delhi
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MH Ecalifc Emobllity Private Limited
CIN: U63030DL2020PTC360711
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General Information

MH Ecolife Emobility Private Limited ({the *Company”} ia a private limited Company incorporated on 23-Jan-2020 under the Companies Act,
2013 having its registered office at 601, Hemkunt Chambers, 89, Nehru Place, New Delhi (South Delhi), 110019 India. The principal
activities of the Company are owning, operating and maintaining electric vehicles commercially and managing depots.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 were approved by the Board of Dircctors and authorize for issuc on 9th May
2023

2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared as a going concern in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

2.2 Basis of Preparation and Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policics mentioned below. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goeds or services.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current according to the Company's operating cycle and other criteria set
out in the Act. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash cquivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve meonths for the purpose of current or non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

The principal accounting policies are set out below,

2.3 Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the period
presented. Actual results may differ from the estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at ecach balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and future periods affected.

2.4 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, Amounts disclesed as revenue are net of returns, cash
discount, trade allowances, sales incentives and value added taxes. The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue and its
related cost can be reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been
met for each of the Company's activities as described below.

Sale of Services
Revenue from services are recognized as related services are performed.

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:
1. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance as the Company performs;

2. The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced, or

3. The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and an entity has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date. .

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which the
performance obligation is satisfied. i

Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount
of income can be measured reliably. For all Financial instruments measured either at amortized or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). Interest income is included in other income in the

Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income in respect of financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss is included in
ather income. ¢ I~
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MH Ecolife Emobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2020PTC360711
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualilying assets, which are assets that necessarily

take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or snle,

Where the funds used to finance a qualifying asset form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is ealculated using a weighted
average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the Company during the year

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualilying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs consist of intcrest, which is computed as per effective interest method, and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds, Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing

costs,

2.6 Employecc Benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled within the operating cycle after the end of
the period in which the employces render the related services are recognised in the period in which the related services are rendered and
are measurcd at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid.

2.7 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the Statement
of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profits. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and incurred tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductilile temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
asscts and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year _
Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are_recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the income taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

2.8 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) are stated at cost of acquisition, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,

il any. The cost of tangible asset includes purchase cost (net of rebates and discounts) including any import duties and non-refundable

dtaxes. ﬂnddany directly attributable costs on making the asset ready for its intended use. Freehold land is measured at cost and is not
epreciated.
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MH Ecolife Emobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2020PTC360711
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interest cost incurred on qualifying assct is capitalized up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use, based on borrowings incurred
specifically for financing the nssct or the weighted average rate of all other borrowings if ne specific borrowings have been incurred for the
asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as n separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits nssocinted with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of nny component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when feplaced, The other repairs and maintenance of
revenue nature are charged to the Statement of Profit and Less during the reporting period in which they have incurred.

Projects under which the property, plant and equipment is not yet ready for their intended use are carricd as capital werk-in-progress at
cost determined as aforesaid.

Depreciation methods, estimated uscful lives and residual value

Depreciation is ealeulated using the straight-line method on a pre-rata basis from the month in which ecach asset is ready to use to allocate
their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II of the companies Act,
2013 except in respect of the following assets where estimated useful life is determined as per management’s estimate based on technical
advice which considercd the nature of asscts, the usage of assect, expected physical wear & tear:

Property, plant and equipment Useful lives based on technical evaluation
Commercial Vehicles (Bus) 12 years
Plant & equipment 12 years

The assets’ residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the cnd of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis,

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are credited / debited to profit or loss.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

2.9 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are determined based on best management estimate required to settle the obligation at balance sheet date. If the effect of the
time value of meoney is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be ¢onfirmed only
by the occurrence or non- occurrence of one or mere uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present

obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent assets

Contingent assct being a possible asset that arises from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, is not fecognized but disclosed in the
financial statements.

2.10 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entlity and a financial liability or equity instrument of

alnother entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractua isions of
the instrument. §
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MH Ecolife Emobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2020PTC360711
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fnir value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial instruments (ather than financinl assets and financial liabilitica at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial nssets or financial liabilities, as approprinte, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of finnncinl nssets or financial linbilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in
profit or loss. Subsequently, financial instruments are measured nccording to the category in which they are classified,

(1) Financial nssects
All recognised financial assets are subscquently measured in their entirety at cither amortised cost using the effective interest meth od or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

(ii) Classification of financial assets
Classification of financial assets depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categorics:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (cither through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
p Y aging

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost unless the asset is designated at fair value through
profit or loss under the fair value option:

- Business model test: The objective of the Company's business model is to hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows.

. Cash flow characteristic test: The contractual term of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income unless the asset is
designated at fair value through profit or loss under the fair value option:

- Business model test: The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting cash flows and
selling financial assets.

. Cash flow characteristic test: The contractual term of the financial asset gives rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

All other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(1i1) Trade rececivables
Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost less provision for impairment.

({iv) Cash and cash equivalents

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash cquivalents includes cash in hand, cheques and balances with bank and short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amount of cash. Bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet and forms part of financing activities in the Cash Flow Statement.
Book overdraft is shown within other financial liabilities in the Balance Sheet and forms part of operating activities in the Cash Fl&v
Statement.

{(v) Impairment of financial assets:
The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model to the following:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
- financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Expected credit loss are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to !

- the twelve month expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial instruments that are
possible within twelve months after the reporting date); or

- full life time expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial
imstrument). olif,
e e
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MH Ecolife Emobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2020PTC360711
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the
scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

{vl) Derecognition of financial nsscts
A financial asset is derecognised only when
- The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial aaset or

- Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the finnncial asset, but nssumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows
to one or more recipients ’

- The right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired.

Financial liabilities and equity Instruments

(vil) Classification of debt or equity

Debt or equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

(viii) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contracl that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities, Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds reccived, net of direct issue costs.

(ix) Financial liabilitics

All financial liabilities are subscquently measured at amortized cost using the cffective interest rate method or at fair value through
Statement of Profit and Loss.

(x) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods or services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial period which are
unpaid.

[x1) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(xii) Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.

(xiii) Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right 1o
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty,

2.11 Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the nsset or
transfer the liability takes place cither:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. ‘
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS i

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to gencrate cconmﬁic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the naset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Balance Sheet on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above

2.12 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,
except where the result is anti-dilutive,

2.13 Government Grants & Subsidies
Government grants are recognised only when there is a reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attached to

them and the grants will be received.

Government grants relating to income are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company
recognises as expenses, the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Grant relating to assets are netted off against

the acquisition cost of the asset.
In case of a government grants relating to non-monetary asset, received for the use of the Company, both grant and asset are accounted for
at a nominal value.

2.14 Rounding of Amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and the accompanying notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs of Indian Rupees

as per the requirement of Schedule Il (Division 1I) of the Companies Act 2013, unless otherwise stated.
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Nate No. 3. PROPERTY, PLAXT AND EQUITMENT

| % in Lakhs)

PFlant and Puralture

Office Bquipment

Particulars il bng-Coant Vehlcles (tneluding Computer Total Ansots
Equipment winil Fixtures Syatom)

Qross Riock

As at Olat April 2021 . 1,278.58 1,278.58
Additens THO0 10,205.01 - 10,045.18
As at March 21, 2022 TA0, 10 11,483,060 12,223.70
Adhitans 2T0.T1 R (.00 5,204,206 .60 b, 176.55
Ax at March 31, 2023 1,810 87 1.00 - 16,777.84 1.60 18,400.31

Accumulated Depreciation
Ax at Olst April 2021 7.0 - 7.01
Chargad Por the Peomxd 2708 50141 §29.39
As at March 31, 2022 27.98 508,41 - 536.39
Chamad Par the Penad 107,84 X 1,244.58 0.20 1,352.82
As at March 31, 2023 135,82 Q.20 1,752.99 0.20 1.889.21
Net Rlack

Asat March 31, 2022 7138 . 10,975.19 - 11,687.37

An at March 31, 2023 1,434,058 020 - 15,024.86 1.40 16,511.10

Certain bormowings of the Company have been secured aganst Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note 14 & 17)

Note No. 4 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXTENSE

For the year ended

For the year ended

Paitiowlsrs 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Depreciation and  amortisation on Property, Plant 3

and Bgquipment Laane 32999
Total 1,352.82 53939
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { T ln Lakhs)
An at As at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
5 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
Capital work in progress® N 4,843.52
- 4,843.52
* Including pre-operntive expenses of Rs. NIL (.Y Rs. 34 1.86 Inkhs) (Refer Note No. 28)
CWIP ageing as at 31st March, 2023 {tin Lakhs)
CWIP Agelng
Projects in Progreoss
Bus | = - I : I % | =
For Capltal work in progress, whoae completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost as compared to Its original plan, following
WIr Tomplerion sehranle 15 piven: To be completed in
Project Name Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total
Bus » , o a -
CWIF agring as at 31st March, 2022 (2 in Lakhs)
CWIP Agelng
Project Name Le=s than 1 yenr 1-2 YVears 2-32 Yenars More than 3 Total
YCoOIrs
Projects In Progress
Bhs [ 287.96 4.555.57 | el s ) 4,843 52
For Capital work in progress, whose completion is overdue or has enceeded its cost es compared to its original plan, following
CWIP completion schedule ix given:
To be completed in
Projcct Name Less than 1 ycar 1-2 Yecars 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total
Bus 4,843.52 - - - 4.,843.52
NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Carried at amortlsed cost)
6 OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Unsecured, consldered good)
Other Bank Balances
In Fixed Deposit account of more than 12 months original
Al 2,307.87 1,165.00
Sccurity Dcposit 52.78 0.10
2,360.65 1,165.10
* Fixed Deposit of Rs. 1,165.00 Lakhs & Rs. 663 Lakhs is under lien for Debt Service Rescrve Account. (Refer Note 14 & Note 17)
CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
({Carried at amortised cost)
7 TRADE RECEIVABLES *
Unsecured - Considered good 860.59 2,187.03
£60.59 2,187.03
* Certain borrowings of the Company have been secured against Receivables [Refer Note 14 & Note 17)
Trade recelvables agelng as at 31st Masch, 2023 { T in Lakhs)
Particulars Unbllled Dues Outstanding for following perleds from due date of payment Grand Total
Less than 6 6 month -1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years More than
months J ycars

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables
- considered pood 573.42 275.45 = = 2 i T
(i) Undisputed Trade Ll B
Receivables - which have
significant inerease in credit nisk < . = s E? = =
[m) Undisputed Trade
Receiviables - credit impaired . . .

(iv) Disputed Trade
Recewables—considered pood .

(vl Disputed Trade Receivables -
which have significent increase
lin eredit risk . : - " " i o
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - ==
eredit impaired

Total 573.42 275.45 860,59
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Trade recelvables mgeing as at 31st March, 2022 (% In Lakhs)

Outstanding for followlng perloda from due date of payment Grand Total
Particulars Unbilled Dues

Less than 6| 6 month -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yemrn | Morc than
months 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade
recevables - considered good 235.20 1,945.36 6.48
(i) Undisputed Trade
Receivabies = which have
significant increase in credit
risk # = = 3 =
(i11) Undisputed Trade
Recelvahies - credit impaired = = > z

. - ; . 2,187.03

(iv) Disputed Trade

Receivalle s=conside red good = = - -
¥ Iapuic ra

Receivables - which have

significant increase in credit
risk - - - - -
Total 235.20 1,945.36 6.48 - . - 2,187.03

As at Ag at
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

B CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash in hand
Balances with banks

- In Current account 884.53 26501
884.70 265.21

0.17 0.20

9 OTHER BANK BALANCES

In Fixcd Deposit account of more than 3 months original 271.06 120.03
maturity but less than 12 month maturity *

27106 120.03

* Fixed Deposit of Rs. 125.46 Lakhs is earmarked against Bank Guarantee taken by the Company for onward submsision with Navi Mumbai Municipal Transport
Undertaking (NMMT)

10 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Unsecured, considered good)

Interest accrucd on Fixed Deposit T78.12 22 .49
78.12 22.49
11 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Vascoused, considered good)
Balance with statutory/government authorities 4.68 ; 1,107.67
Capital subsidy receivahle - 2,306.00
TDS/TCS recovernble 147.12 182.26
Prepaid expenscs 100,94 81.19
Advance to suppliers B.17 1.05
Other current assets 1645 6.91
277.87 3,685.08
12 SHARE CAFITAL
A) Authorised
1,00,000 (PY ; 1,00,000] Equity Shares of Rs. 10 /- each 10.00 10.00
3,95,50,000 (FY : 3,05,50,000] Preference Shares of Rs.10/- 3,055.00 3,055.00
each
3,965.00 3,965.00
Bj 1ssued, Bubscribed and Fully Paid Up
50,010 (PFY : 50,010) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 /- each fully paid 5.00 5.00
up
5.00 5.00
© Reconciliation of the cquity shares outstanding at the
beginning and at the end of the reporting peried
50,010 50,010

Number of shares outstanding al the beginning of the year

Add: issued during the year 5 z - . " -
Number of shares outstanding al the end of the year

s

Lo
R ~5p
R (o
ar¢holder is entitle

[19)] Terms/rights sttached to equity shares
The Company has one class of equity sharcs having par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each s
liquidation, the cquity sharcholders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the Company
shareholding.
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(F)

1G)

13

(i)

Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company a8 follows
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Name of Sharcholder

Aa nt 31st March, 2023

An at 31at March, 2022

No. of sharos

% Shnarcholding

No. of shares

%, Bharcholding

JBM Auto Limited (along with the nominee)

50,010

100%

50,010

100%

Equity shares held by the llolding Company In mggregate

Name of Shareholder

An at 318t March, 2023

As at 31at March, 2022

No. of shares

% Shareholding

No. of shares

%, Bharcholdlng

JBM Auto Limited (nlong with the nominee) 50,010 100% 50,010 100%
Equity sh held by pr ters
Current Year
% Change
Shares held by promoters An nt 31st March , 2023 As at 31ut March , 2022 durlng the
yenr
5. No Promoter name No. of Shares % of total No. of Shares % of tatal
shnres shnres
1 JDBM Auto Limited (along 50,010 100% 50,010 100% -
with the nominee)
Total 50,010 50,010
Previous Year
% Change
Shares held by promoters As nt 31st March , 2022 As at 31st March , 2021 during the
year
5. No Promoter name MNo. of Shares % of total No. of Shares % of total
shares shares
1 JBM Auto Limited (along 50,010 100% 50,010 100% =
with the nominer)
Total 50,010 50,010
OTHER EQUITY
{i] Current reporting period {2 in Lakhs)
Reserves and
Surplus
Equity component of
Particulars compound financial Retalocd Total
Earnilngs
Instruments
Bal as at Ol1st April, 2022 1,814.56 264.25 2,078.81
Changes in accounting pelicy or prior errors - £ i
Balance as at O1st April, 2022 1,814.56 264.25 2,078.81
Add: Profit for the year - 306.60 306.60
Less: Deferred Tax Liabilities on Equity component of financial instruments (456.69) . [456,69)
Balance as at 21st March 2023 1,357.87 570.85 1,928.72
ii) Previous reporting period
Reserves and
Surplus
Equity component of
Particulars compound financial gemﬁed Total
instruments arnings
|Balance as at 01st April, 2021 - 2.63 2.63
Changes in accounting policy or prior ermors = - <
Balance as at O1st April, 2021 - 2.63 2.63
Add: Profit for the year - 261.62 261.62
Add: Issued during the year* 1.814.56 - 1,814.56
Daolance as at 31st March 2022 1,B14.56 264.25 2,078,81

“Equity component of compound financial instruments includes Equity Component of 6% Non Cumulative Redeemnble Preference Share Capital, (ssued during the

year 3,94,70,000 (P.¥:31.03.2021: Nil ) of Rs. 10/~ each

Nature And Purpose Of Reserves

Retained Earnings - The balance in the Retained Earnings primarily represents the surplus after payment of dividend and transfer to reserves.

E.‘qul,ry.compnnlnt of Compound Financlal Instruments - The Company has issucd redeemnble preference shares which falls under the d
Financial Instruments as per IndAS 32 *Financia! Instruments : Presentation®, Equity componenla

roh, ol dir
1

gund financial instruments

o

o)
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NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIADILITIES
(Carried at amortised cost)

NON CURRENT BORROWINGS

LONG TERM BORROWINGS
SECURED

Term Loan from banks
In Rupee*

Less: Current maturities of term loan

As at
31st March, 2023

JBMID

o .

MH Eeoclife Emobility Private Limited

CIN: US3030DL2020PTC360711

(¥ ia Lakhs)

As at

31st March, 2022

12,562.52 14,041.27
12,562.52 14,041.27

1,973.87 1,767.55
10,588.65 12,273.72

* Term loan of T 12,562.52 (P.Y T 14,041.27 lakhs) is sccurcd by First charge on all present and luture moveable and fixed asscts and the current assets,
hypothecation of 150 Electric Buses, receivables, balance in bank accounts, lien of Fixed Deposit Rs. 1,165.00 Lakhs & Rs. 663 Lakhs, Corporate Guarantee from
JBM Auto Limited, pledge of 25,500 No's of Equity Shares and 1,41,88,200 No's of 6% Non Cumulative Redeemnble Preference Share Capital of MH Ecolife Emobility

Private Limited.

Maturity profile

Current reporting period {%in Lakhs

No. of Balance

Balancc as at 31st Yearly/Quart Balance Instalment Instalment as

Term of Repayment of Loan March, 2023 (Rs. In crly/{"llonthly as at 31st March, |Rate of intecrest it Atat .

Lakhs) Instalments #R=s March, 2022

Term Loan from Banks 12,562.52 90 Monthly T4|MCLR Linked Rate 86

Total 12,562.52

Previous reporting period { ¥ in Lakhs)

No. of Balance
Balance as at 31st v 1y/0O "t Balance Instalment Instal ¢
Term of Repayment of Loan March, 2022 (Rs. In CREY /AL Aas At 31st March, |Rate of interest polalmentas
Lakhs) erly/Monthly 2022 at 31st
’ Instalments March, 2022
Term Loan from Banks 14,041.27 | 90 Monthly 86| MCLR Linked Rate 86
Total 14,041.27

There have been no breach of covenants mentioned in the loan agreements during the reporting periods.

UNSECURED

3,94,70,000 (P.Y: 3,94,70,000) 6% Non Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of Bs. 10 /- each®

*6% Non Cummulative Redeemable Preference shares shall be redeemed on the expiry of tenure of eight years from the date of allotment

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
Timing Differences on account of
Deferred tax llabilities

Related to property, plant and equipment and Intangible assels
Equity component of compound financial instruments
Deferred tex asscts

Unabsorbed depreciation under Income Tax Act, 1961

Net Deferred tax liabilities / [assets)

As at
31lst March, 2023

As at

31st March, 2022

2,423.25 2,243.75
2,423.25 2,243.75
13,011.89 14517.47
1,330.35 §29.87
383,50
(1,052.42) (416.41)
661.42 113.46

Deferred tax liability and deferred tax assct has been offsel as they relate 1o the same government taxation laws.

Major components of deferred tax liabilities/(asset) arising on nccount of temporary difference are as follows:

As at Olst April,

Movement during the

As at 31st March 2023

202? year
Related to property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 520.87 B00.48 1,330.35
Equity component of compound linancial instruments - 383,50 383.50
Unabsorbed depreciation under Income Tax Act, 1961 (416.41) (636.01) (1,052.42)
Total 113.46 547.97 661.42

Total

As at Olst April,

Movement during the

As At 31st March 2022

2021 year
& 16.51 483.306 520,87
(45.57) (370.84) (416.41)
0.93 112.52 113,46
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As at
31st March, 2022

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
Am at
31st March, 2023

16 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Delerred Government Grant 0.70 -
0.70 -
CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
[Carrled nt Amortised Cost)
17 CURRENT BORROWINGS
Secnred (Refer Note No - 14 A)
Current maturities of long term borrowings 1,973.87 1,767.55
1,973.87 1,767.55
18 TRADE PAYABLES *
Total 0\_1! standing Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small 55.83 2
Enterorises
TPml Ul_nstanding Dues nl'Cm‘ﬂilnrs other than Micro 1.400.63 ) 1,811.08
Enterprises and Small Enterprises
1,456.46 1,811.08
* Refer note 33
Trade payable ageing as at 31st March, 2023 { ¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars “Unbilled Dues Outstanding for following periods from dne date of payment Grand
Total
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
(IMSME = 55.83 - - = 55.83
(i)Others 373.30 952.43 74.90 - - 1.400.63
(iii) Disputed ducs -MSME = - = = - -
(iv) Disputed dues — Others - - - - - =
Total 373.30 1,008.26 74.90 - - 1,456.46
Trade payable ageing as st 31st March, 2022 {in Lakhs)
Particulars Unbilled Dues Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Grand
Total
Less than 01 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
Ycar ycars
((IMSME - - = - - -
[ii)Others 632.65 117842 * - - 1.,811.08
(iii} Disputed dues -MSME - - - = = =
(iv] Disputed dues - Others - - - g . 1
Total 632.65 1,178.42 - = - 1,811.08
- [ in Lakhs)
As ut As at
& 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
19 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES ;
Payable for capital goods - 2,067.78 3,674.80
2,180.69 3,6T4.80
20 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory dues payable 24.72 T.68
Deferred Government Grant 0.10

24.82 7.68
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS { T in Lakhs)
For the yonr ended 31st For the year ended
March, 2023 31st March, 2022
21 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of services 6,160,91 2,356.13
6,160.91 2,356.13

Disaggregation of Revenue: The Company is primarily engaged in the business of owning, operating and malntaining clectric vehicles commercially and managing
depots for Indian market. llence, there is only one business and geographical segment.

The amounts receivables from customers become due alter expiry of credit perfod which on an average Is 30 days,

There is no significant financing component in any transaction with the customers.

22 OTHER INCOME

Interest on [ixed deposits * 73.13 24,12
Misrellaneous income 12.06 -
85.19 24.12
* In relation to financial asscts carricd at amortiscd cost 73.13 24.12
23 EMFLOYEE BENEFITS EXFPENSE
Salaries & wages 1,567.78 255.86
1,567.78 255.86
Less: Transferred to Project Commissioned/under Commissioning * - 24.02
1,567.78 231.84
*Refer Note No 28
24 FINANCE COSTS il
Interest on borrowings * 1,224.63 693.94
Interest on liability component of financial instruments® 179.50 111.31
Other financial charges 20.99 60.11
1,434.12 865.35
Less: Transferred to Project Commissioned funder Commissioning ** T6.97 36088
1,357.16 465.47
* In relation to financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 1,404.12 805.25
** Refer Note No 28
a5 OTHER EXPENSES
Rates & taxcs 4.83 41.12
Repair & maint s cial vehicles 66.84 58.34
Bank charges - 191.64
Electricity expense 219.38 355.30
Legal A professional charges 12.84 R 13.09
AMC charges 1,132.48 287.65
Security Charges 22.59 10.29
Communication expenses 6.57 4,18
Insurance cxpenscs 103.71 10.20
Other administrative expenses 1.21 1.49
1,570.46 973.44
Less: Transferred to Project Commissioned {under Commissioning * - 194.03
1,570.46 779.41
* Refer Note No 28
26 TAX EXPENSE
Tax cxpense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Deferred tax 91.28 112.52
91.28 112.52

The Major Component of Income Tax Expense and the reconciliation of expense based on domestic effective rate and the reported tax expense in profit & loss are as

follows ;

Proflt/(Loss] Before Tax 30788 374.14

Rate of tax (At Country's statutory Income Tax Rate) 25.17% 25.17%
Computed tax Expense 100.14 94.16

Disallowances/ Allawances
Tax Expense

(85.80)
91,28
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{Amount In Inkhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. 27. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EFPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted

average number of Equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number
of Equity shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of

all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares,

{ 2 in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
Partlculars alst March, 2023  31st March, 2022
Profit/(loss) after tax 306.60 261.62
Weighted average number of equity shares (Qutstanding during the period) 50,010 50,010
-Face Value of share (Rs. 10/-)
Baslc Earning per share (in Rs.) 613.08 523.13
Diluted Earning per share (In Rs.) 613.08 523.13
Note No. 28 : PRE-OPERATIVE EXPENSES
{ ¥ in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars

31st March, 2023

31st March, 2022

Opening Balance 341.86 31.76
Employce benefit expense
Salaries & wages - 24.02
- 24.02
Finance costs
Interest on borrowings 76.97 340.66
Bank guarantee charges and others - 59.22
76.97 399.88
Other expenses
Rates & taxes - 0.54
Legal & professional charges - 3.09
Repair & maintenance = 0.61
Other administrative expenses - 0.07
Bank charges ’ - 189.71
194.03
Total Project Development Expenditure 418.83 649,69
Less: Project development expenditure capitalised during the year 418.83 307.83
Closing Balance = 341,86
Note No. 29 : CONTINGENT LIABLITIES AND COMMITMENTS
A. Contingent liabilitles: There is no contingent lability
B. Commitments - (¥ in Lakhs)
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on caplital account and As at As at
not provided for (Net of advances) 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Property, plant and equipment - 297.57
C. Other C itments {2 in Lakhs)
As at As at
s 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Bank Guarantees 6,519.00 4,443.00
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note No. 30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The list of related parties as identified by the management is as under:

Holding Company
Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Holding Company

Hey Managerial PFersonnel (KMP)

JBM Auto Limited

JBM}I®

Cnar bty Bow s sty

JBM Electric Vehicle Private Limited

Mr. Krishan Kumar Gupta, Director
Anuj Goyal, Company Secretary (w.e.l. 04.02.2023)

{?in Lakhs)
Nature of transaction For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Wholly Owned Wholly Owned
Holding Company Bubsidiary Of Holding Company Bubsidiary Of Holding
Holding Company Company

Purchase of Capital Goeds
JBM Auto Limited 796.51 5 740.16 -
Total 796.51 - 740.16 -
Puarchase of Goods and SBervices
JBM Auto Limited 979.74 - 293.10 -
Total 979.74 - 293.10 -
Ind AS Interest on 6% Non Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Share Capital Outstanding
JBM Auto Limited 179.50 E 111.31 -
Total 179.5D0 - 111.31 -
Other Expenses Relmbursement (Recovery)
JBM Electric Vehicle Private Limited - - 0.12
Total - - 0.12
Other Exp R rsed
JBM Auto Limited 1,390.71 2,021.88 -
Total 1,390.71 2,021.88 -
Preference Share Capital Issued
JBM Auto Limited 3,947.00 -
Totzl . 3,947.00 -
Bank Guarantee Taken and Outstanding
JBM Auto Limited 2 3,952.00
Total - 3,952.00 -
Carporate Guaruntee Taken and Outstanding
JBM Auto Limited 22,476.00 22,476.00 -
Total 22,476.00 22,476.00 -
Borrowing - 6% Non Cumulative Redeemahble Preference
SBhare Capital Outstanding
JBM Auts Limited 2,423.25 2,24375 -
Total 2,423.25 2,243.75 -
Recelvable [ (Payable)
JBM Electric Vehicle Private Limited - . 0.12
JBM Auto Limited (3161.91) {4807.506) .
Total (3161.91) [4B0T.56) 0.12

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

operates.

Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the period-end are
unsccured, . For the period ended 31st March 2023, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to namounts owed by related parties
This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party
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NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Amount In lakhs, unless otherwisc stated)

Note No.31.: SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of owning, operating and maintaining electric vehicles commercially and manapging depots. Hence, no scparate
seguient disclosures as per Ind AS 108 "Opernting Segments” have been presented. The said treatment is in nccordance with guidance principles enunciated in

Ind AS 108 "Segment Reporting” as referred to in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,

Revenue from transactions with a single external customer amounting to 10 percent or more of the Company's revenuc is as follows

{2 in Lakhs)
For the year ended 31st | For the year cnded 31st
Pa
TR March, 2023 March, 2022
atnmar 6,160.91 2.356.13

Note No. 32 : AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION (EXCLUDING GET]
{2 in Lakhs)

For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
EniALesbe March, 2023 March, 2022
[A) Statutory Audit Fees 2.50 1.50
(B} Tax Audit Fees 1.00
(C) Other Services - 0.10

Note No. 33 : DETAILS OF DUES (TRADE PAYABLES) TO MICRO ENTERPRISES AND SMALL ENTERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER THE MSMED ACT,
2006

{ 2 in Lakhs)

For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st

o | [rastiviias March, 2023 March, 2022

(i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the 55.83 -
end of each accounting year

(i} the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting - -
year
{iii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along - )
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during cach
accounting year

{iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which - +
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the MSMED Act 2006. =

v The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - -

{(vi) |The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until - =
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purposc of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006
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(Amount in Inkhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. 34 : FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(A) Capital management

The Company manages its capitnl to ensure that the Company will be nble to continue ns a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through
efficient nallocation of capital towards expansion of business, opitimisation of working capital requirements and deployment of surplus funds inte various
investment options.

The manngement of the Company reviews the capital structure of the Company on regular basis. As part of this review, the Bonrd consitders the cost of capital
and the risks nssociated with the movement in the workinp capital.

The Company monitors its capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided to total cquity. Net debt includes, loans and borrowings less cash and cash
cquivalents,

(T In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2023 . 31st March, 2022
Net debt 14,101.07 16,019.81
Total equity 1,933.72 2,083.81
Net debt to equity ratio 7.29 7.69

(B] Falr value measurements
The Company uses the following hicrarchy for determining and/or disclosing the fair value of finaneial instruments by valuation techniques:
The following is the basis of categorising the financial instruments measured at fair value into Level 1 to Level 3:

Level 1: This level includes financial assets that arc measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics.

Level 2: This level includes financial asscts and linbilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asget or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.c., derived from prices).

Lewel 3: This level includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that arc not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair
values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market
transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

The fair value of the financial assets arc determined at the amount that would be received to sell an asset in an erderly transaction between market participants.

{C] Categories of financlal instruments

(1 In Lakhs)
. As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Particulars

Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial asscts
Measured at amortised cost
Other non current financial asscts 2,360.65 . 2,360.65 1,165.10 1,165.10
Trade receivables B60.59 860.59 2,187.03 2,187.03
Cash & cash equivalents 8a4.70 884.70 265.21 265.21
Other bank balance 271.06 271.06 120.03 120.03
Other current financial assets 78.12 78.12 22.49 22,49
Total financial assets measured at amortised cost 4,455.13 4,455.13 3,759.87 3,759.87
Finanecial Labllities
Measured at emortised cost
Non current borrowings* 14,985.77 14,985.77 16,285.02 16,285.02 -~
Trade payables 1,456,496 1,456,946 1,811.08 1,811.08
Other current financial liabilities 2,180.69 2,180.69 3,674.80 ’ 3,674.80
Total financial Habilities measured at amortiscd cost 3,637.16 3,637.16 5,485 88 5,485.88

* Including current maturities of non-current borrowings

Carrying value of other non current financinl assets, othier linancial assets, tride 1eceivables, cash and eash equivalents, other bank balances, other financial
liabilities, trade payables, borrowings are considered to be same as their fair value,

There have been no transler nmong levels during (he year
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(D) Financlal risk management objectives nnd policies

The Board of Dircctors oversee the Risk Management Framework and developing nnd monitoring the Company's risk management
policies. The risk management policies are estnblished to cnsure timely identification and evaluation of risks, setting acceptable
risk thresholds, identifying and mapping controls ngainst these risks, monitor the risks and their limits, Improve risk awarcness
and transparency, Risk management policics and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions and
the Company's netivities to provide reliable information to the Management and the Board to evaluate the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risk faced by the Company.

The risk management policies nims to mitigate the following risles nrising from the financial instruments:

- Market risk
- Credit risk; and
- Liquidity risk

D.1 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. The Company does not have any Financial Instruments affected by market risk hence no gensitivity analyses shown under
this risk.

n) Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposurc will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in forcign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s
opcrating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency)

At present Company has no forcign currency cxposure.

b) Interest rate risk management
The Company is exposed to interest ratc risk because Company borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is

managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.

Interest rate scnsitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period. For

floating rate linbilitics, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding ot the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible chanpe in interest rates.

Impact on Profit [ {loss) for the year for n 50 basis point change:

{z In Lakhs)
Particulars Increase/dccrease in basis Effcct on profit before tax
31-Mar-23
Borrowings +50 (62.81)
Borrowings -50 62.81
31-Mar-22
Borrowings +50 (70.21)
Borrowings -50 70.21

D.2 Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the

Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of
financial loss from defaults. The Company's exposure and wherever appropriate, the credit ratings of its counterpartics arc
continuously monitored and spread amongst various counterpartics. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are
reviewed and approved by the management of the Company. -
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Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk, principally consist of balance with banks, trade receivables,
loans and advances and derivative financial instruments. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in matcrial
concentrations of credit risks,

Balances with banks were not past due or impaired as at the year end. In other financial assets that arc not past dues and not
impaired, there were no indication of default in repayment as at the year end.

D.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company can not meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management
is to maintain sufficient liquidity and to ensure funds are available for use as per the requirements.

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between conlinuity of funding and flexibility. The table below summarises the
maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments,
Less than 1 1't0'8 years More than 5 Total
year years
As at 31st March, 2023
Non-current borrowings* 1,973.87 8,125.25 2,463.40 12,562.52
Preference Shares (Undiscounted) - - 3,947.00 3,947.00
Trade payables 1,456.496 - - 1,456.46
Other financial liabilities-
Payable for Capital Goods 200718 - ) %,067.78
5,498.12 8,125.25 6,410.40 20,033.77
Less than 1 1to 5 years More than 5 Total
year years
As at 31st March, 2022
Non-current borrowings* 1,767.55 9,875.73 2,397.99 14,041.27
Preference Shares (Undiscounted) - - 3,947.00 3,947.00
Trade payables 1,811.08 - - 1,811.08
Other financial liabilities-
Payable for Capital Goods 3.,674.80 i ) 3,674.80
7,253.43 9,875.73 6,344.99 . 23,474.15

*including current maturitics of non- current borrowings.
Note No, 35 : EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no reportable events that occurred after the end of the reporting period,




oney 1USUINS3AUL U0 WINay Z
onel Jasowiny Adojuaau] |

sajqearidde Jou a1e awes ay) st pajuasaid jJou are sopjer Fupmor(oj ayj Joj 9inso[Is|g

SININIQEIT XEL Palajad +
Tead snowmaid 03 paredwod se| i |senqiqel] osea| Surpnjoul) 51503 &
7 e T AN 86 Sy : : y winia,
fureduiog sy jo sygoid U asearour o ang | o EoF | %E0T %866 % U gaqmioL + yuom 19N|  9dueuy pue xvj 210jeq 1yoid pafoidmy reyded uo wmdy| - 6
pafordwyg reyiden
“pourad 3s®] ay) duunp
pasireniden are sasuadxa se 1509 aduvuld|9%81'cS- L0171t 06 o5 U] suopelado Woly anuaaAsy [xel 1ouv) IgoId 18N oney 1old IsN 8
pue 3503 Jamaduejy Ut s5E3IOUI O} @n(]
. Jeak ayl Juunp [ended 94,95 60- los'+) 062) sawn u| Ju nmuzuwmmﬂ_..__ suonetadp WOy SNUIA oney Jaaowiny fende) 1ay L
Suppiom afesase ul ssealdap ol sng | ° 08+ 06t RIHH FBLNY, - MASSY ITRH00 uoeladp woy AY 2 O . ! »
[enide) 3un{iop adelany
“Jeas snoald o) paredwod se Auedwod| , : ; sasuadxy ¢
311 JO SNUIAII Ul ISBAIDUL O) ang %00'SL (1) s6°1 sawg ut SaIqedtg apuay, Setony B3I + SIVISS JO ISEYAUNG vl ARSI FRIRSA SRR -
'S101G3P WIOL) PIAI2ISL JUNOWE pue
meak snowaid 0y patedwos se Auedwon [9469° L8 cIe +0't sIwn up|sa|qealadnady apel] adeiany suonesdp woy anuaaay oney JAAOUIN] SI[qeAladay apel] g
3Y) JO aNUIAI Ul ISBAIDUT 03 an(]
. . . - (dure 1) puapiatp adualajalg
LAVASE b %881 %69T°ST Yo UL Aunbg rejoy aderaay ssa[ reak oy} 10§ IJ0Id Ajmbg uo wniay 14
sjuaunsnipy
. siuswdvday |yseo-uoy 1230+  Isau9U|
Teaf ||y 10f [euonesado jo ssneasq I ) ) rediouuy  +  siuswAed|+ sasuadve  Sunerado  yses Bt oo S
M“u._, o4y un_._nﬂ_._v 51500 3ourUly PUR %I’ LT 890 L80 e P LY 1sa1aiug|- UON + SIXBL 19® 15oid 13N °RYY sUemAeg sanRS | €
asuadya uoneaidag w asaiou 0l ang eopaes 3990 sofateg
192 3o} o[qeprear s3ujureqm
[sanmqer]
" ISET] =1L + sd ULWOLI0g P
%060 8L SL'L sawn ut Lnbg elol JaLny g sSuLmaLoq oney Anbyg 1q2g Z
JUALINI-U0p]) 1q2g ol
parjadal Apjsans|, | 980 zv0 sown uf|  SANIIQEK] IUSLIND (IO, §1388Y JUSLIND (301 onwy juwaung| 1
%3 £10)q3p WOL) P2Aladal JunOWe ©3 Ing
fAA T4 £T0CT
@saue{EA J0) uoseay| osuepeA| ‘ydrew Isie | ‘YdIEW ISIE won dojeujuIcuaq Jdojerawny O3y | ‘ON'S
onTy v

uopjeurioju] A103u|nday [eRcRIPPY 9€ ! 930N

(po3e3s ospmrarfio seajun ‘syye] u Junoury)
SINIWILVLS TVIONVNIL 40 LUVd DNIWH O SELON

TILO9EDILJ0ZTOTTAOECEDN NID
Pa3juiy] 300K

LU SIE SRS OO

@Al



“1eaf [erounuy oy Juunp fsusund Enlia g0 {Huanmd 03d41d ur palsaaul 1o papen jou sey fuedwod syl 6

(1961 19y XeL awoau] i1 Jo suoisiaold JUBAI[aI 19130 AUE 10 3AINS 10 YIILIS ST YINS) (9] 19V Xe], woesu]

a1 J2pun sjuAwssIsse ¥y ayy w1 ek ayy Fuunp .uEOuE SE PISO[ISIP JO PAISPUSLING UM SBY JBY] SIUNOIIL JO $300( I} Ul PIPIOdAL 10U ST 2Ma uonoesuen Auwe aae] 1ou ssop Aueduwo) ayy 8
saURIyaUay 1B 243 JO JEYaq U0 31] 9 Jo {junoes ‘aajuesend Aue apuoad (q)

10 (saureldyauag stewnn) Aed TUTpun.g auyl Jo JBUaq Uo 10 £q J9A30STEYM Jouueit AU Ul PAgTIUSPI §aNNUD 10 sUsIad 1310 U] 3SIAUL 10 PUI[ A[DALPUT IO A[I4LD (¥) "
Ve ' reys Auedwod
a1 1B (FS1ULYI0 10 SuRUM Ul Paplo3al J3ayn) SuipurlsIapun auyy [ (ded Suipuny) sennue udiaio) Bupniou {se1)linue o (sjuosiad fue wolj puny Aue paaladal Jou sey Auedwo sy
SaURIDYAUSE S1RWR]N Y1 JO J[2Yaq Uo IO 03 1] 3y} 10 AJLNIIs ‘adjuerend Aue apiaoid (q)

10 (sauwpyausg sjewnin) Auedwon oy Jo JiEyaq uo Jo Aq J2A208IBYM 1SUUELL AUY U PIGRUIPE SIANUS 10 suostad 131[0 w1 18aAul 10 Pua| AN2a11pul 10 Ap2anp (e) g

{leys ATelpauLiaju] 3y 3By} (9SLMIaL[10 Jo BunHn U PIpIodal 13Iaym) SUIpUEISIapUN S kN [ssueipauuaju]) sannua
ufia1gy Suipnpour (sa1)£inus Jo (sjuosiad 1310 AUE 0 [SpUn) JO PUIX JO §32IN0S Jayio Aue Jo wnnuaid sreys 10 SpUN} pamouoq 13U} SPUT) PIIsaAUL JO PIUBO[ JO PIJUBAPE Jou suy Auedwod ayl

‘pouad Loimes a3 puedaq (DoY) seiuedwo) jo JensEay ol Y pataistdal 99 01 194 81 YaIym UonOBjSOes 10 sIFIBYD Aue daey Jou sa0p Auedwo) ayL g

-reaf redueuy a1 SUUNp gGET 19y saiuediio] Jo (9S UONIIS 10 €107 19V s3luedwao) 2y Jo gy UOHIIS JOPUN JjO HINNS sIURdWIOD [1n SUONIBSURI AUR JAEY Jou s30p Auedwo) ay] t

"BIPU| JO NURH JAIas3) Y} 4AQ PINssT SIA[NEJAP [N UO SAUTBpING ay &
L 30UEPIO9E Ul I5PUI] SSLI0 10 JOIIIY WNHIoEUO0S 10 (£ 0z “19V saiuedwo) 343 19pUN pauyap se) uonmusu| [eueuy 10 jueq AUe Aq 131[NEJIP [Nj[[Ln B SB Pare[aap uaaq lou sey fueduiod ayy

‘fuadord mareuaq Lwe Suipjoy Joy Luedwo) atp 1surede Suypusd 10 pajenmur uaaq sey Jurpassosd Aue szaym ‘Ausdond noeuaq Lue saey ou sop Auedwod syl z

7uawfedal jo pouad Jo suwel Lue Furdjoads InoyIL 10 puBwap uo sjqededas are 1eWn 'uostad sapo Lue
i Aol 40 A[[eaaass Jaule ‘(g1 0g 99V setuedwo] Japun pauyep se) santed paje(as sy pur sgi} ‘s4030311Q ‘s1ajowold 03 SUBO JO 2UMIVU I UI SIFULAPY J0 sUBO] pajuesd jou sey LuedwoD oy

s1g[nojEd oN iS5

suopjeutzoju] L1o3emday 12430 a

{pa1®1s aspmIalio ssa[un ‘siyyje] Uy Junoumy)
SLNEWALVLS TVIONVNI4 40 LiVd DONIWNIO04 SEALON

TI1L09€DLd0TOTIAOEQCEDN NID
PaRulT 3vapd

BRI I I e S aT)

@:iNEr



JBMI®

MH Ecolife Emobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2020PTC360711

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount In lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. : 37 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, asseta and linbilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty nbout these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require n material adjustment to the carrying amount of
asscts or liabilities affected in future periods, The Company continually evaluates these estimates and assumptions based on most recently
available information. Revision to nccounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which
the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected,

A. Judgments

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

B. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below, The
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur.

(i) Falr value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in

active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model based on level-2 and
level-3 inputs. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as price estimates, volume estimates, rate

estimates etc. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

(if) Impairment of financlal assets

The impairment provisions for trade receivables are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The company uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment caleulation based on the company's past history and other
factors at the end of each reporting period.

Assumptions are also made by the management with respect to valuation of inventories, contingencies, and measurement of recoverable
amounts of cash generation unit.

(111) Estimates related to useful life of property plant & equipment

Depreciation on Property Plant & Equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful lives estimated by the m’lnage-mpm These
rates are in line with the lives prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The management has re-estimated useful lives and residual values of its assets. The management based upon the nature of asset, the
operating condition of the assct, the estimated usage of the assct, past history of replacement and anticipated technological changes, believes
that depreciation rates currently used fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment &
Intangible Assets,

(iv) Impairment of Asscts
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. In calculating the value

in use, certain assumptions are required to be made in respect of highly uncertain matters, including management's expectations of
growth in EBITDA, long term growth rates; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks involved.

(v) Contingent liabllities

The contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company. The Company evaluates the obligation through
Probable, Possible or Remote model ('PPR). In making the evaluation for PPR, the Company take into consideration the Industry perspective,
legal and technical view, availability of documentation/agreements, interpretation of the matter, independent opinion from professionals
(specific matters) etc. which can vary based on subsequent events. The Company provides the liability in the books for probable cases, while
possible cases are shown as contingent liability. The remotes cases are not disclosed in the financial statement.

{vi) Taxes
Provision for tax liabilitics require judgments on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case law and the potential outcomes of
tax audits and appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary from expectations resulting in

adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax settlements and therefore the tax chnrge in the Statement of Profit or
Loss.
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Note No. 28 : AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE AND HAVE NOT BEEN ADOPTED BY THE COMPANY

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifics new standards or nmendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Amendment
Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather
than their significant nccounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors « This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting
estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting
estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated
the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to
transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for ndoption of this amendment is annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statement.
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